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PROFILE

"E'thimumBank Holdings, Inc. (the “Company”) is a bank
holding company and the parent company of OptimumBank
(the “Bank™), a Florida state chartered commercial bank. The
Bank’s deposits are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation. The Bank opened for business on November 1,
2000 and since opening has grown significantly. At December
31, 2007, the Company had total assets of $241.5 million, net
loans of $173.3 million, total deposits of $125.0 million and
stockholder’s equity of $22.2 million. During 2007, the
Company had net earnings of $1.7 million, or $.59 and $.57 per
basic and diluted share, respectively.

g@ptimumBank offers real estate lending and retail banking
products and services to individuals and businesses in Broward,
Miami-Dade and Palm Beach Counties. The Bank also offers
internet banking services through its “OptiNet” internet
banking website, located at www.optimumbank.com.

EthimumBank Holdings Common Stock i1s quoted on the
NASDAQ Global Market System under the symbol “OPHC.”
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To Our Sharcholders,

The 2007 year has been turbulent for banking institutions in the United States. Many
institutions reported weakness in their loan and securities portfolios resulting in significant credit
write-downs and dramatically lower earnings. Despite all the problems around us, OptimumBank
Holdings, Inc. reported a strong year with net income for the year ended December 31, 2007 of
$1,741,893, or $.59 per basic and $.57 per diluted share, compared to net income of $1,834,839, or
$.62 per basic and $.60 per diluted share, reported for the prior year ended December 31, 2006. Our
lending and investing practices have been conservative since opening for business and we have never
engaged in sub-prime mortgage lending. With our loan portfolio’s overall loan to value ratio at
origination of 57%, we are not anticipating the significant loan problems being reported by many
other banks.

Our assets as of December 31, 2007 increased to $241.5 million compared to $225.7 million at
December 31, 2006, a $15.8 million increase. Our securities portfolio increased to $58.7 million at
December 31, 2007 compared to $33.6 million at December 31, 2006. Our net loan portfolio
decreased to $173.3 million at December 31, 2007 from $181.8 million at December 31, 2006, due to
fewer lending opportunities in our market area.

Recent news reported by the Mortgage Bankers Association noted increased loan delinquency,
non-performing asset and foreclosure rates in the mortgage markets. At December 31, 2007, our asset
quality remained strong with no loan delinquencies; non-performing loans and foreclosed assets
totaled a minimal $245,228 and $78,682, respectively. We are entering 2008 with one of the lowest
loan delinquency rates in Florida, attesting to the overall strength of our portfolio.

Our deposits remained relatively stable during 2007. With decreased loan activity during 2007
due to the weak real estate marketplace, total deposits decreased from $129.5 million at December 31,
2006 to $125.0 million at December 31, 2007. Qur capital base strengthened in 2007 increasing to
$22.2 million at December 31, 2007 from $20.4 million at December 31, 2006. We remain well in
excess of all of our regulatory capital requirements and book value per share at December 31, 2007
was $7.48 compared to $6.90 at December 31, 2006.

We are proud that we can report such favorable results especially in light of an unprecedented
weak marketplace. Our conservative business philosophies and strategies were validated in 2007 and
we will stay on the same path as we enter 2008. Your continued confidence and support is sincerely
appreciated.

Y ours truly,

CZ%O/’- Lenehe @r ﬁ‘”’f}

Albert J. Finch
Chairman of the Board President




SDptimumBank

Holdings, Inc

Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.
SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

At December 31, or for the Year Then Ended
(Dollars in thousands, except per share figures)

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
At Year End:
Cash and cash equivalents..........ccccveininiriorerecianens 3 701 1,604 1,154 3,223 539
Securities held 10 MAtUALY......c..oveiiniieeneieinrinneens 58,471 33,399 25,618 24,134 16,539
Security available for sale ... 244 241 243 247 246

LOANS, MEL...vvvreenrmrsisiresis s e iessis s ssmnssnssasrareraes 173,323 181,878 170,226 128,810 111,320

L0anS held fOF SAIE -.oo.ooooomoremsomemeecsomssersessesssssensense - - - 509 1,406
ALl OtHET ASSELS -oveverreeirsasrriraeansaneresomiesesssonasnossassnsen 8.808 8.581 8.803 7.635 5.129
TRl BSSELS e eres s 5 241,547 225,703 _206,044 _164.558 135,179
DEpOSIit ACCOUNIS..c.cvvrvneeereererenrrsarscrerssmsesssissessssrans 125,034 129,502 114,064 97,994 80,744
Federal Home Loan Bank advances .........ccccecueicnnen. 56,850 56,550 52,950 37,650 29,500
Other DOITOWIRES ....vecraerereeiseseinniseracsmesiessssassssansenes 28,900 10,950 12,950 5,000 8,750
Junior subordinated debenture .........c.ooveeeeeeeeisineninns 5,155 5,155 5,155 5,155 -
All other Habilities ........oocovereereeimrerrerererceessesceesisinns 3,361 3,123 2,515 2,036 1,285
Stockholders’ EQUILY .....ccoveminimerirerereres e 22,247 20.423 18,410 16,723 14,900

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity ........... $_241,547  _225703 206,044 _164,558 135,179
For the Year:

Total INETEsSt INCOIMIE ....ouvvrerree e reesieresrencsms s srstns 16,137 14,191 11,334 8,815 6,516
Total interest EXPENSe.........couorereereirsrsessninmnrsesisaines 9,700 8,063 5,841 4,032 2,986
Net interest iNCOMmME......vvr v eeerereisierirsrsasisarniesverasanes 6,437 6,128 5493 4,783 3,530
Provision for 10an losses .......ccccmnniiiniieenes 476 265 149 136 204
Net interest income after provision for loan losses .. 5,961 5,863 5,344 4,647 3,326
Noninterest iNCOME. .....cvcrvrrerrerevricmessmsnsisisansesinens 533 628 635 690 323
Noninterest EXpenses ... mcresirserevnseans 3.749 3.574 3.396 2,801 2,075
Earnings before income taxes .........oeimmnncrninnren 2,745 2,917 2,583 2,536 1,574
INCOME LAXES ...eeceveeesernereniemcemcrmsbisisesansinssansrssesrinesses 1,003 1,083 982 966 600
NEL CAMIES ..vvvevec e eesessesssssssssassrasasssssssesessessines b 1,742 1,834 1601 1,570 974
Net earings per share, basic (1) ..o 5 59 62 35 54 34
Net earnings per share, diluted (1) .cconvvvrivereccneee. $ o7 60 S3 o2 33
Weighted-average number of shares

outstanding, basic (1. 2964026 2,953,673 2931380 2,906,547 2,876,696
Weighted-average number of shares

outstanding, diluted (1) ..o, 3,033,090 3,079,635 3044880 2997380 2,936,94]
Ratios and Other Data:
RENIn 0n AVErage ASSELS .uvmmrnsiirsireimsesnsisiasssisens 3% 85% .86% 1.06% .95%
Return on average equity................ . 8.16% 9.37% 9.09% 10.05% 6.99%
Average equity t0 average assets ......i-weeees 8.96% 9.12% 9.42% 10.53% 13.62%
Net interest margin during the year.........c..ccccvveies 2.78% 2.96% 3.08% 3.35% 3.56%
Interest-rate difterential during the year ................... 2.34% 2.63% 2.84% 3.05% 3.11%
Net yield on average interest-earning assets............. 6.96% 6.85% 6.36% 6.18% 6.56%
Noninterest expenses to aVerage assels........oeou 1.57% 1.67% 1.82% 1.89% 2.03%
Ratio of average interest-eaming assets 10

average interest-bearing liabilities ... 1.10 1.08 1.08 1.11 1.15
Nonperforming loans and foreclosed real estate

as a percentage of total assets at end of tyear ..... 0.01% - - 2.54% -
Allowance for loan losses as a percentage o

total loans at end of year ..........cccevveeriiicenennss 40% 54% A6% 49% 44%
Total number of banking offices.......cococcovieeirreannee. 3 3 3 3 3
Total shares outstanding at end of year (1)............... 2,972,507 2,961,294 2936812 2,921,737 2,881,385
Book value per share at end of year (1}.......ooenneenc $ 7.48 6.90 6.27 5.72 5.17

(1) All share and per share amounts have been adjusted to reflect the 5% stock dividends declared in May 2007 and April
2006.
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Holdings inc MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

General

OptimumBank Holdings, Inc. was formed in 2004 as a Florida corporation to serve as a one-bank holding
company for OptimumBank and acquired all of the shares of OptimumBank in May 2004. Our only business is the
ownership and operation of OptimumBank. OptimumBank is a Florida chartered bank which opened in November
2000, and its deposits are insured by the FDIC. OptimumBank provides community banking services to individuals
and businesses in Broward, Miami-Dade and Palm Beach counties. OptimumBank conducts operations from its Fort
Lauderdale headquarters and three branch offices in Fort Lauderdale, Plantation and Deerfield Beach.

At December 31, 2007, our company had total assets of $241.5 million, net loans of $§173.3 million, total
deposits of $125.0 million and stockholders' equity of $22.2 million. During 2007, our company had net earnings of
$1,742,000.

Critical Accounting Policies

Cur financial condition and results of operations are sensitive to accounting measurements and estimates of
matters that are inherently uncertain. When applying accounting policies in areas that are subjective in nature, we
must use our best judgment to arrive at the carrying value of certain assets. One of the most critical accounting
policies applied by us is related to the valuation of our lean porifolio.

A variety of estimates impact the carrying value of our loan portfolio including the calculation of the
allowance for loan losses, valuation of underlying collateral, the timing of loan charge-offs and the amount and
amortization of loan fees and deferred origination costs.

The allowance for loan losses is one of our most difficult and subjective judgments. The allowance is
established and maintained at a level we believe is adequate to cover losses resulting from the inability of borrowers
to make required payments on loans. Estimates for loan losses are determined by analyzing risks associated with
specific loans and the loan portfolio, current trends in delinquencies and charge-offs, the views of our regulators,
changes in the size and composition of the loan portfolio and peer comparisons. The analysis also requires
consideration of the economic climate and direction, changes in the interest rate environment which may impact a
borrower's ability to pay, legislation impacting the banking industry and economic conditions specific to the tri-
county region we serve in Southeast Florida. Because the calculation of the allowance for loan losses relies on our
estimates and judgments relating to inherently uncertain events, results may differ from management’s estimates.

The allowance for loan losses is also discussed as part of "Results of Operations” and in Note 3 of Notes to
the Consolidated Financial Statements. Our significant accounting policies are discussed in Note 1 of Notes 1o the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Regulation and Legislation

As a state-chartered commercial bank, the Bank is subject to extensive regulation by the Florida Department
of Financial Services and the FDIC. We file reports with the Florida Department and the FDIC concerning our
activities and financial condition, in addition to obtaining regulatory approvals prior to entering into certain
transactions such as mergers with or acquisitions of other financial institutions. Periodic examinations are performed
by the Florida Department and the FDIC to monitor our compliance with the various regulatory requirements. The
Company is also subject to regulation and examination by the Federal Reserve Board of Governors.

Loan Portfolio, Asset Quality and Credit Risk

Our primary business is making real estate loans. This activity may subject us to potential loan losses, the
magnitude of which depends on a variety of economic factors affecting borrowers which are beyond our control. We
have instituted detailed loan policies and procedures which include underwriting guidelines to minimize loss
exposure. We also have credit review procedures to protect us from avoidable credit losses. We believe our
procedures are adequate to insure asset quality and protect against credit risk, but some losses beyond our control will
inevitably occur.
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The following table sets forth the composition of our loan portfolio:

Residential real estate...........
Multi-family real estate.........
Commercial real estate.........
Land and construction..........
Commercial .......cococvevinienncnn
CONSUIMET ..oceeevrererainarnerannns

Total 1oans ......cccecveeruerenn.

Add (deduct):
Allowance for loan losses ..
Net deferred loan costs

Residential real estate...........
Multi-family real estate.........
Commercial real estate.........
Land and construction..........
Commercial ........cco.ooeveerencas
CONSUMIET ..vvvireeeeecvsssarnssnns

Total 10ans .......creeeeeeercesns

Add (deduct):
Allowance for loan losses ..
Net deferred loan costs
diSCOUNTS ..viveereeiinreeen e

At December 31,
2007 2006 2005
% of % of % of
Amount Total Amount Total Amount Total
{dollars in thousands)
$ 65,908 38.08% § 70,868 38.99% § 65,016  38.29%
10,275 5.94 10,769 593 15,135 891
75,777 4378 68,852 37.89 54,286 3197
21,093 12.19 31,022 17.07 34,760  20.47
- - - - 570 33
15 .01 227 A2 43 .03
173,068  100,00% 181,738 100.00% 169,810 100.00%
(692) (974) (777)
947 1,114 1,193
$ 173,323 $ 181,878 $ 170,226
At December 31,
2004 2003
% of of
Amount Total Amount Total
(dollars in thousands)
$ 61,070 47.38% $ 57,797 51.88%
10,853 8.42 10,148 9.11
38,064 2953 26,129 2345
18,169 14.09 16,783 15.06
581 A5 490 .44
162 13 72 .06
128,899 100.00% 111,419 100.00%
(628) (492)
539 393
$ 128810 $1i1,320
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The following table sets forth the activity in the allowance for loan losses (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Beginning balance.........ccceccrnvvivcen. 3974 §777 $ 628 $ 492 $ 288
Provision for loan losses 476 265 149 136 204
Loans charged off..........ccoovevicnicnncnnnnen. (758) {68) - - -
Ending balance............cccoevvereeeervcrearnennas $692 594 $ 777 $628 $492

The allowance for loan losses is established as losses are estimated to have occurred through a provision for loan
losses charged to earnings. Loan losses are charged against the allowance when we believe the uncollectibility of a loan
balance is confirmed. Subsequent recoveries, if any, are credited to the allowance. In 2007 and 2006, the charge-offs
related to a single-family residential loan. The allowance for loan losses represented .40% and .54% of the total loans
outstanding at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

We evaluate the allowance for loan losses on a regular basis. It is based on our periodic review of the
collectibility of the existing loan portfolio in light of historical experience, the nature and volume of the loan portfolio,
adverse situations that may affect the borrower’s ability to repay, estimated value of any underlying collateral and
prevailing economic conditions. This evaluation is inherently subjective as it requires estimates that are susceptible to
significant revision as more information becomes available.

The allowance consists of specific and general components. The specific compeonent relates to loans that are
classified as impaired. For such loans, we establish an allowance when the discounted cash flows (or collateral value or
observable market price) of the impaired loan is lower than the carrying value of that loan. The general component covers
all other loans and is based on historical loss experience adjusted for qualitative factors.

We consider a loan impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that we will be unable
to collect the scheduled payments of principal or interest when due according to the contractual terms of the loan
agreement. Factors we consider in determining impairment include payment status, collateral value, and the probability of
collecting scheduled principal and interest payments when due, Loans that experience insignificant payment delays and
payment shortfalls generally are not classified as impaired. We determine the significance of payment delays and payment
shortfalls on a case-by-case basis, taking into consideration all of the circumstances surrounding the loan and the
borrower, including the length of the delay, the reasons for the delay, the borrower’s prior payment record, and the amount
of the shortfall in relation to the principal and interest owed. We measure impairment on a loan by loan basis for
commercial real estate, land and construction and multi-family real estate loans by either the present value of expected
future cash flows discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate, the loan’s obtainable market price, or the  fair value of
the collateral if the loan is collateral dependent.

We collectively evaluate large groups of smaller balance homogeneous loans for impairment. Accordingly, we do
not separately identify individual consumer and residential loans for impairment disclosures.
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The following table sets forth our allowance for loan losses by loan type (dollars in thousands):

Allowance for Loan Losses

At December 31,
2007 2006 2005
% of % of % of
Total Total Total

Amount Loans Amount Loans Amount Loans

Residential real estate............... $187 38.08% $400 38.99% $206 38.29%
Multi-family real estate............. 59 594 54 593 81 8.91
Commercial real estate............. 379 4378 406  37.89 347 3197
Land and construction.............. 67 12.19 114 17.07 140 2047
Comumercial ........ocovvevimrcnsnnens - - - - 3 33
CONSUIMET ....ocveireiiernareserresserees - .01 - .12 - .03

Total allowance for loan losses $692 100.00% $974 100.00% 3777 100.00%

Allowance for loan losses as

a percentage of total
loans outstanding................ 0.40% 0.54% 0.46%
At December 31,
2004 2003
% of % of
Total Total
Amount Leans Amount Loans
Residential real estate............... $218 47.38% $202 51.88%
Multi-family real estate............. 52 8.42 137 9.11
Commercial real estate.............. 240 29.53 60 2343
Land and construction.............. 115 14.09 93 15.06
Commercial .....ooovevververneererreres 3 A5 - A4
CONSUIMEE ..oe.vcreerererensereesarsoeees - 13 - .06
Total allowance for loan losses 3628 100.00% $492 100.00%
Allowance for loan losses as
a percentage of total
loans outstanding................ 0.49% 044%




rumBank
" Holdings, Inc

There were no impaired loans during 2006 or at December 31, 2005 or 2007. During 2007 and 2005, the average
net investment in impaired loans and interest income recognized and received on impaired loans is as follows (in

thousands):
Year Ended December 31,
2007 2005
Average investment in impaired 10a0S.........c..ccoceceerervrinveneneieieeeenienes $ 1,581 5844
Interest income recognized on impaired loans........cccoeveeeviericecceenns $__39 $ -
Interest income received on a cash basis on impaired loans................ $__39 5 -

At December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2003, the Company had no nonaccrual loans or loans over 90 days past due still
accruing interest. Nonaccrual and past due loans were as follows as of December 31, 2007 and 2004 (in

thousands):
At December 31,
2007 2004
Nonaccrual J0anS .....c.eecveiieee e ressess s e se s s eme e $245 53,268
Past ninety days or more, but still accruing interest..........coceeinnnen. $ - $
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

Liquidity represents an institution's ability to meet current and future obligations through liquidation or maturity
of existing assets or the acquisition of additional liabilities. Our ability to respond to the needs of depositors and borrowers
and to benefit from investment opportunities is facilitated through liquidity management.

Qur primary sources of cash during the year ended December 31, 2007 were from other borrowings of $18.0
million, principal repayments and calls of securities held to maturity of $9.2 million and net repayments of loans of $7.6
million. Cash was used primarily to purchase securities held to maturity totaling $34.2 million and to fund deposit
withdrawals of $4.5 million. In order to increase our core deposits, we have priced our deposit rates competitively. We
will adjust rates on our deposits to attract or retain deposits as needed. In addition to obtaining funds from depositors in
our market area, from time to time we have utilized brokers to obtain deposits outside our market area.

In addition to obtaining funds from depositors, we may borrow funds from other financial institutions. We are a
member of the Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta, which allows us to borrow funds under a pre-arranged line of credit
equal to 40% of the Bank's total assets. As of December 31, 2007, we had $56.9 million in borrowings outstanding from
the Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta to facilitate loan fundings and manage our asset and liability structure. In
addition, we have an unsecured "federal funds" line of credit with Independent Bankers Bank of Florida totaling $6.0
million, none of which was outstanding at December 31, 2007. This credit line is normally used to meet short-term
funding demands. At December 31, 2007, we sold securities under an agreement to repurchase totaling $28.9 million.
These borrowings are collateralized by securities held to maturity with a carrying value of $33.7 million at December 31,
2007. We believe our liquidity sources are adequate to meet our operating needs.

Securities

Our securities portfolio is comprised primarily of mortgage-backed securities and a mutual fund. The securities
portfolio is categorized as either "held to maturity" or "available for sale.” Securities held to maturity represent those
securities which we have the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity. These securities are carried at amortized cost.
Securities available for sale represent those investments which may be sold for various reasons including changes in
interest rates and liquidity considerations. These securities are reported at fair market value and unrealized gains and
losses are excluded from earnings and reported in other comprehensive income.

The following table sets forth the amortized cost and fair value of our securities portfolio (in thousands):

Amortized Fair
Cost Yalue
At December 31, 2007:
Securities held to maturity:
Mortgage-backed SeCUTItIES vvvrrvieiivariiian $ 58,371 £ 58,017
Forelgh bond.....coccivimneecrniiinincinisnnns 100 100
$ 28471 $58,117
Securities available for sate-
Mutual fund .......coeveeeieeeree e $__250 $...244
At December 31, 2006:
Securities held to maturity:
Mortgage-backed securities ........cooinnninrens $ 33,299 $£33,050
Foreign bond ... 100 100
$33,390 $33.150
Securities available for sale-
Mutual fund ..o $__250 $__241
At December 31, 2003:
Securities held to maturity-
Mortgage-backed securities...........covvvveereee. $25618 $ 25,096
Securities available for sale-
Mutual fund ......coooceeeeiiiiencreren s $__250 $_ 243
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The foliowing table sets forth, by maturity distribution, certain information pertaining to the securities portfolio {dollars in
thousands):

After One After Five
But Within Years

Within Five Through  After Ten
One Year Years Ten Years Years Total Yield

At December 31, 2007:

Mortgage-backed securities ..... §__- §_- $ o $58371 $58371 559%

Foreign bond........cccooovvnnnnee §__- 5_- $ 100 5__- $§_100 595%
At December 31, 2006:

Mortgage-backed securities ..... $_- $_- $ - $33299 $33299 5.01%

Foreign bond.........ocoocoeurcrneenee $_- $__- $100 $__- $__100 5.95%
At December 31, 2005:

Mortgage-backed securities ..... $__- $_- $_-. $25618 $25618 4.4%%

Regulatory Capital Adequacy

The Bank is subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the Federal and state banking
agencies. As of December 31, 2007, the most recent notification from the regulatory authorities categorized our Bank as
well capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. To be categorized as well capitalized, an
institution must maintain minimum total risk-based, Tier I risk-based, and Tier I leverage percentages as set forth in the
following tables. There are no conditions or events since that notification that management believes have changed our
calegory.

The following table sets forth for the Bank the amount and the percentage of our actual regulatory capital,
regulatory capital for capital adequacy purposes, and the minimum regulatory capital to be well capitalized under the
prompt corrective action provisions of the Federal regulations (dollars in thousands).

REGULATORY CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS

Minimum
To Be Well
Capitalized Under
For Capital Adequacy Prompt Corrective
Actual Purposes Action Provisions
Amount % Amount _% Amount _%
As of December 31, 2007:
Total Capital to Risk-
Weighted Assets.............  $27,966 17.95% $12,465 8.00% § 15,581 10.00%
Tier { Capital to Risk-
Weighted Assels............. 27,274 17.50 6,232 4.00 9,349 6.00
Tier I Capital
to Total Assets............... 27,274 11.15 9,787 4.00 12,234 5.00
As of December 31, 2006:
Total Capital to Risk-
Weighted Assets............. 26,334 16.72 12,599 8.00 15,749 10.00
Tier | Capital to Risk-
Weighted Assets............. 25,360 16.10 6,299 4.00 9,449 6.00
Tier 1 Capital
to Total Assets................ 25,360 11.24 9,026 4.00 11,282 5.00
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Minimum
To Be Well
Capitalized Under
For Capital Adequacy Prompt Corrective
Actual Purposes Action Provisions
Amount % Amount % Amount %
As of December 31, 2005:
Total capital to Risk-
Weighted assets.............. $23,891 16.27% $11,746 8.00% § 14,684 10.00%
Tier I Capital to Risk-
Weighted Assets............. 23,114 15.74 5,874 4.00 8,811 6.00
Tier I Capital
to Total Assets........c...... 23,114 11.50 8,040 4.00 10,050 5.00
Market Risk

Market risk is the risk of loss from adverse changes in market prices and rates. Our market risk arises primarily
from interest-rate risk inherent in our lending and deposit-taking activities. We do not engage in securities trading or
hedging activities and do not invest in interest-rate derivatives or enter into interest rate swaps.

We may utilize financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk in the normal course of business to meet the
financing needs of our customers. The measurement of market risk associated with financial instruments is meaningful
only when all related and offsetting on- and off-balance-sheet transactions are aggregated, and the resulting net positions
are identified. Disclosures about the fair value of financial instruments, which reflect changes in market prices and rates,
can be found in Note § of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Our primary objective in managing interest-rale risk is to minimize the potential adverse impact of changes in
interest rates on our net interest income and capital, while adjusting our asset-liability structure to obtain the maximum
yield-cost spread on that structure. We actively monitor and manage our interest-rate risk exposure by managing our asset
and liability structure. However, a sudden and substantial increase in interest rates may adversely impact our earnings, to
the extent that the interest-carning assets and interest-bearing liabilities do not change or reprice at the same speed, to the
same extent, or on the same basis.

We use modeling techniques to simulate changes in net interest income under various rate scenarios. Important

elements of these techniques include the mix of floating versus fixed-rate assets and liabilities, and the scheduled, as well
as expected, repricing and maturing votumes and rates of the existing balance sheet.
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Asset Liability Management

As part of our asset and liability management, we have emphasized establishing and implementing internal asset-
liability decision processes, as well as contro! procedures to aid in managing our earnings. Management believes that
these processes and procedures provide us with better capital planning, asset mix and volume controls, loan-pricing
guidelines, and deposit interest-rate guidelines, which should result in tighter controls and less exposure to interest-rate
risk.

The matching of assets and liabilities may be analyzed by examining the exient to which such assets and
liabilities are "interest rate sensitive” and by monitoring an institution’s interest rate sensitivity "gap." An asset or liability
is said to be interest rate sensitive within a specific time period if it will mature or reprice within that time period. The
interest-rate sensitivity gap is defined as the difference between interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities
maturing or repricing within a given time period. The gap ratio is computed as the amount of rate sensitive assets less the
amount of rate sensitive liabilities divided by total assets. A gap is considered positive when the amount of interest-rate
sensitive assets exceeds interest-rate sensitive liabilities. A gap is considered negative when the amount of interest-rate
sensitive liabilities exceeds interest-rate sensitive assets. During a period of rising interest rates, a negative gap would
adversely affect net interest income, while a positive gap would result in an increase in net interest incomne. During a
period of falling interest rates, a negative gap would result in an increase in net interest income, while a positive gap
would adversely affect net interest income.

In order to minimize the potential for adverse effects of material and prolonged increases in interest rates on the
results of operations, our management continues to monitor our assets and liabilities o better match the maturities and
repricing terms of our interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities. Our policies emphasize the origination of
adjustable-rate loans, building a stable core deposit base and, to the extent possible, matching deposit maturities with loan
repricing timeframes or maturities.
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The following table sets forth certain information relating to our interest-earning assets and interest-bearing
liabilities at December 31, 2007, that are estimated to mature or are scheduled to reprice within the period shown (dollars
in thousands):

GAP MATURITY / REPRICING SCHEDULE

More More
than One than Five
One Year and Years and Over
Yearor  Less than Less than Fifteen
Less Five Years  Fifteen Years  Years Total

Loans (1): - —

Residential real estate loans ........... $ 26,996 § 34,166 $ 4,746 $ - $ 65,908

Multi-family real estate loans.......... 5,173 5,102 - - 10,275

Commercial real estate loans........... 27,759 47818 200 - 75,7177

Land and construction..........ccueeeees 9,004 12,089 - - 21,093

Consumer [0ans.......ccoceerveieiiervennee. 15 - - - i5

Total 10ans. ......ccocovvvremrrercrmeercecns 68,947 99,175 4,946 - 173,068
Federal funds sold .......ccccovninnninncnnneans 226 - - - 226
Securities (2) v 1,473 3,693 11,202 42,347 58,715
Federal Home Loan Baok stock ............. 2,965 - - - 2,965

Total rate-sensitive assets................ 73,611 102.868 16,148 42347 234974
Deposit accounts (3):

Money-market deposilS......ocovviienne 26,760 - - - 26,760

Interest-bearing checking deposits ., 967 - - - 967

Savings deposits ......c.ovicirireereeeecns 475 - - - 475

Time deposits ..coveceveveecrmvcrcovmeninns 18,100 17,428 - - 95,528

Total deposits ........conrevrrirerrerenes 106,302 17,428 - - 123,730
Federal Home Loan Bank advances....... 13,650 43,200 - - 56,850
Other borToWINgS......covrerverrimreeneesersens - 28,900 - - 28,900
Junior subordinated debenture................ - 5.155 - - 5.155
Total rate-sensitive liabilities ................. 119,952 94.683 - - 214635
GAP (repricing differences) .......c.cooovu-. $(46341) $_38,185 $ 16,148  $42,347 § _20,339
Cumulative GAP ... $(46,341) §(38,156) $(22,008) $20339
Cumulative GAP/total assets.................. {19.19% $_(1580)% § (9.1D)% $__842%

(1) In preparing the table above, adjustable-rate loans are included in the period in which the interest rates are next

scheduled to adjust rather than in the period in which the loans mature. Fixed-rate loans are scheduled, including
repayment, according to their maturities.

(2) Securities are scheduled through the repricing date.

3) Money-market, interest-bearing checking and savings deposits are regarded as readily accessible withdrawable
accounts. All other time deposits are scheduled through the maturity dates.
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The following table sets forth loan maturities by type of loan at December 31, 2007 (in thousands):

After One
One Year But Within After
or Less Five Years Five Years Total
Residential real estate .....o..oocveeeeeen. $ 1,401 $10,917 $ 53,590 $ 65,908
Multi-family real estate................... - - 10,275 10,275
Commercial real estate. .................. 1,720 593 73,464 75,777
Land and construction............eeuu..... 3,507 6,044 11,542 21,093
CONSUMET ......cvrernenreenreesrerireiresirenees 15 - - 15
Total ..o, 3 0,643 $ 17,554 $ 148,871 3 173,068

The following table sets forth the maturity or repricing of loans by interest type at December 31, 2007 (in
thousands):

After One
One Year But Within After
or Less Five Years Five Years Total
Fixed interest rate ...........covevveereenenn $§ 5,836 $ 8,627 $4,946 $ 19,409
Variable interest rate..........ccoovennee 63.110 90,549 - 153,659
T DO $ 68,946 $99,176 34,946 $ 173,068

Scheduled contractual principal repayments of loans do not reflect the actual life of such assets. The average life
of loans is substantially less than their average contractual terms due to prepayments, In addition, due-on-sale clauses on
loans generally give us the right to declare a conventional loan immediately due and payable in the event, among other
things, that the borrower sells real property subject to a mortgage and the loan is not repaid. The average life of mortgage
loans tends to increase, however, when current mortgage loan rates are substantially higher than rates on existing
mortgage loans and, conversely, decrease when rates on existing mortgages are substantially higher than current mortgage
rates.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements and Aggregate Contractual Obligations

We are party to financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk in the normal course of business to meet the
financing needs of its customers. These financial instruments include commitments to extend credit. At December 31,
2007, we had outstanding commitments to originate real estate loans totaling $6.7 million and undisbursed loans in
process totaling $250,000. These instruments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit and interest-rate risk in
excess of the amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheet. The contractual amounts of those instruments reflect
the extent of the Company's involvement in particular classes of financial instruments.

Qur exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the other party to the financial instrument for
commitments to extend credit is represented by the contractual amount of those instruments. We use the same credit
policies in making commitments as we do for on-balance-sheet instruments.

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any
condition established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed-expiration dates or other termination clauses and
may require payment of a fee. Since certain commitments expire without being drawn upon, the total committed amounts
do not necessarily represent future cash requirements. We evaluate each customer's credit worthiness on a case-by-case
basis. The amount of collateral obtained, if we deem it necessary in order to extend credit, is based on management's
credit evaluation of the counterparty.
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The following is a summary of the Bank's contractual obligations, including certain on-balance sheet obligations,

at December 31, 2007 (in thousands):

Contractual Obligations

Federal Home Loan Bank advances........
Junior subordinated debenture.................
Other BOrrowWiIngs. .......corerceecremisiarennncnnins

Operating leases
Loan commitments
Undisbursed loans in process

Deposits

Payments Due by Period

Total

$ 56,850
5,155

Less More
Than 1 1-3 35 Than §
Year Years Years Years
$ 700 $11,000 $ 4,000 $ 41,150
- 5,155 - -
- - 28,900 -
130 390 151 -
6,065 - - -
250 - - -
$2745 $16.545 $33,051 $4L130

Deposits traditionally are the primary source of funds for our use in lending, making investments and meeting
liquidity demands. We have focused on raising time deposits primarily within our market area, which is the tri-county
area of Broward, Miami-Dade and Palm Beach counties. However, we offer a variety of deposit products, which we
promote within our market area. Net deposits decreased $4.5 million in 2007 and increased £15.4 million in 2006.

We use brokered deposits to facilitate mortgage loan fundings in circumstances when larger than anticipated loan
volumes occur and there is limited time to fund the additional loan demand through traditional deposit solicitation. In
general, brokered deposits can be obtained in one to three days. The rates paid on these deposits are typically equal to or
slightly less than the high end of the interest rates in our market area. Brokered deposits amounted to $7.5 million and
$8.3 million as of December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006, respectively.

The following table displays the distribution of the Bank's deposits at December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 (dollars

in thousands):

Neninterest-bearing demand deposits
Interest-bearing demand deposits.................
Money-market deposits
SAVINES cocovereerierisiirsms s st

Time deposits:
2.00% —2.99%
3.00% - 3.99% oo
4.00% — 4.99%
5.00% - 5.99%
6.00% — 6.99% ..eovoierireesneen e
7.00% - 7.99% ccoocniriinrrmnsennereens

Total time deposits (1).....cocccvirreereiceene.

Total deposits ...coeeererremisiiisimnirsri

(1)

31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, all of which are in the form of time deposits.
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At December 31,
2007 2006 2005
% of %% of % of
Amount Deposits Amount Deposits Amount  Deposits
§ 1,304 1.04% §$ 545 42% % 390 34%
957 17 1,780 1.37 2,382 2.09
26,760 21.40 23,239 17.95 3,509 308
475 39 856 .66 1,159 1.01
29.506 23.60 26,420 20.40 7,440 6.52
$ - - % § 501 39% § 7,201 6.31%
11,721 9.37 16,578 12.80 48,410 42.44
44 680 3573 47,282 36.51 47,819 41,92
37,801 30.23 38,721 29.90 3,179 2.79
1,326 1.07 - - - -
- - - - 15 .02
95,528 76,40 103,082 79.60 106,624 93.48
$125034 100.00% $129502 100.00% § 114,064 100.00%

Included are Individual Retirement Accounts (IRA's) totaling $7,522,000 and $7,791,000 at December
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Deposits of $100,000 or more, or Jumbo Time Deposits, are generally considered a more unpredictable source of

funds. The following table sets forth our maturity distribution of deposits of $100,000 or more at December 31, 2007 and
2006 (in thousands):

At December 31,

2007 2006
Due three mONthSs 0T LESS .......cccviiiiiiierircrierseseseeresees v e tes s ssaesessaensessessasass $ 8,033 $ 6,858
Due more than three months t0 Six MONthS ..o 16,616 9,898
More than $iX MONLNS 10 ONE YEAT .......ccoeeveirieiritserneserrsresereeens s sessssssssseens 8,680 8,599
ONE 10 TIVE YEATS L.oviiiiieierrici et e e et n s s bbbt 5,543 15,544
TOUAL oottt se et e e e er s ee b et e e e e b ets bt ene s e eeen s e Rt eeate et esarabaent et e e ete e bt ee e e rere e $38872 $40,899

ANALYSIS OF RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Our profitability depends to a large extent on net interest income, which is the difference between the interest
received on earning assets, such as loans and securities, and the interest paid on interest-bearing liabilities, principally
deposits and borrowings. Net interest income is determined by the difference between yields earmed on interest-earning
assets and rates paid on interest-bearing liabilities ("interest-rate spread") and the relative amounts of interest-eaming
assets and interest-bearing liabilities. Our interest-rate spread is affected by regulatory, economic, and competitive factors
that influence interest rates, loan demand, and deposit flows. Qur results of operations are also affected by the provision
for loan losses, operating expenses such as salaries and employee benefits, occupancy and other operating expenses
inciuding income taxes, and noninterest income such as loan prepayment fees.
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The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, information regarding (i) the total dollar amount of

interest income from interest-earning assets and the resultant average yield; (ii) the total dollar amount of interest expense

on interest-bearing liabilities and the resultant average cost; (iii) net interest income; {(iv) interest rate spread; and (v) net
interest margin. Average balances are based on average daily balances (dollars in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005
Interest Average Interest Average Interest Average
Average and Yield/  Average and Yield/  Average and Yield/
Balance Dividends Rate Balance Dividends Rate Balance Dividends Rate

Interest-earning assets:
LOANS cooreerrecececrnreeiinirsnsinas $176,679 $13,086 741% $175,225 §12,662 7.23% §145961 § 9,928 6.80%
SECUTIHES ceeoeevieiaiiirerirsrsrrennens 50,891 2,803 5.51 28,129 1,323 4.70 28,305 1,260 4.45
Other interest-earning
TR (L R 4,364 248 5.68 3.851 206 5.35 4,008 146 3.64
Total interest-earning
assets/interest income.... 231,934 16,137 6.96 207,205 14,191 6.85 178,274 11,334 6.36
Cash and due from banks........... 346 in 211
Premises and equipment ............ 3,433 4,034 4,113
Other a5515.....omiversunerrencsenrees 2.609 3,019 4,383
Total ASSE1S.......veaereeecrrrenns $ 238,322 $ 214,569 $ 186,981
Interest-bearing liabilities:
Savings, NOW and money-
market deposits.....vvenrees 26,648 1,196 4,49 11,974 390 3.26 7,493 80 1.07
Time deposits .oveereerens 97,269 4,640 477 108,448 4,758 439 99,236 3,620 3.65

Borrowings (4) 86,089 3,864 4.49 70,614 2915 413 59,050 2,141 3.63
Total interest-bearing

liabilities/interest

EXPENSE. ceurerererrenssernsnes 210,006 9,700 4.62 191,036 8,063 422 165,779 5.841 352

Noninterest-bearing demand

deposits....c.oreececrciiiinrernininns 1,684 747 953
Other liabilities .......... y 5,289 3,214 2,640
Stockholders' equity.......... . 21,343 19,572 17,609

Total liabilities and

stockholders’ equity....... $ 238,322 $ 214,569 $ 186981
Net interest inCOMe .....ccrvrrrerrrens $_6437 $ 6,128 $.5493
Interest rate spread (2) ..o 2.34% 2.63% 2.84%
Net interest margin (3).-...c.c..cee 2.78% 2.96% J.08%

Ratio of average interest-caming
assets to average interest-
bearing liabilities .......c..ocovnuns L10 L.08 LOR

(1) Includes interest-earning deposits with banks, Federal funds sold and Federal Home Loan Bank stock dividends.

(2) Interest rate spread represents the difference between average yield on interest-earning assets and the average cost of interest-bearing
liabilities.

(3)  Net interest margin is net interest income divided by average interest-carning assets.

(4)  Includes Federal Home Loan Bank advances, junior subordinated debenture and securities sold under an agreement to repurchase.
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RATE/VOLUME ANALYSIS

The following tables set forth certain information regarding changes in interest income and interest expense for
the periods indicated. For each category of interest-camning assets and interest-bearing liabilities, information is provided
on changes attributable to (1) changes in rate (change in rate multiplied by prior volume), (2) changes in volume (change
in volume multiplied by prior rate) and (3) changes in rate-volume (change in rate multiplied by change in volume) (in
thousands):

Year Ended December 31,
2007 versus 2006
Increases (Decreases) Due to Change In:
Rate/
Rate Volume Yolume Total
Interest income:
LOANS. ..o eseve st e emceeeenernsesnenne B 310 $ 105 $ 3 $ 424
SECUMILIES . .1vevervesrseresrrsrereseeeeerrrrrs s ssessessssresnesseas 227 1,071 182 1,480
Other interest-earning assets.........ccoecvceecnveinnnnns _14 26 _2 42
Total Interest INCOME......cverevmeereereeeeerrrerernirinnes 557 1.202 187 1.946
Interest expense:
Savings, NOW and money-market .............c....... 148 478 181 807
Time deposits........ccccoevierciriseniinesn s 414 (491) (42) (119)
BOITOWINES.....ccoeecinriiieseseesn e sreenns 254 638 _57 949
Total interest EXPense .........cceovreniercenicneiesranias 816 625 196 1,637
Net interest MCOME ........cccoeeravarainasiereemememenenens $(259) $ 577 5 (5 $_309
Year Ended December 31,
2006 versus 2005
Increases (Decreases) Due to Change In;
Rate/
Rate Yolume Volume Total
Interest income:
LOBNS...ceeceeeiceeccienneirte e vrrrsmessare e st eavs b e emnens $ o620 $1,990 $124 $2,734
SECUTHES. .ovciiiiecerceee s eart e neaas 71 (8) - 63
Other interest-eaming assets ..........ccccccecenvnreernne 70 (N 3 60
Total INtErest NCOME. ... cecveeceerernrerrrsrrrreersrsessens 761 1,975 121 2.857
Interest expense:
Savings, NOW and money-market ...........ccoevnnee 164 48 98 310
Time deposits......cccovurrirreerercrererererererisssssnsanans 734 336 68 1,138
BOITOWINES....oceeeeeiieecre e senee e 297 418 _39 774
Total interest BXPeEnse ........covveeeeevrieernrercissnsenns 1,195 802 225 2,222
Net interest inCOME .........coceeeererermeeemrvrininsssnsesens $ (434) $1,173 5109 $_635
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Year Ended December 31, 2007 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2006

General. Net earnings for 2007 were $1.7 million, or $.59 per basic and $.57 per diluted share, $92,000 less than in 2006,
The primary factors explaining the decline were a $175,000 increase in noninterest expenses coupled with a $211,000
increase in the provision for loan losses, partially offset by a $309,000 increase in net interest income.

Interest Income. Interest income totaled $16.1 million in 2007, an increase of $1.9 million, or 13.7%. This increase was
primarily due to a $22.8 million, or 80.9%, increase in the average securities portfolio balance coupled with an increase in
the average yield earned on securities, from 4.7% to 5.51%, resulting in a $1.5 million increase in interest on securities.
Interest income on loans increased by 3.4%, or $424 thousand, primarily due to an increase in the average yield eamed on
loans, from 7.23% to 7.41%.

Interest Expense. Interest cxpense totaled $9.7 million in 2007, an increase of $1.6 million, or 20.3%, primarily as a
result of an increase in the overall cost of interest-bearing liabilities to 4.62% compared to 4.22% a year ago, coupled
with a $15.5 million or 21.9% increase in the average balance of borrowings used to fund the company’s growth.
Average balances in deposit accounts increased only marginally by $3.5 million, or 2.9%, and interest expense on deposit
accounts increased by $688,000, or 13.4%, to $5.8 million for 2007.

Provision for Loan Losses. The provision for loan losses in 2007 was $476,000 compared to $265,000 in 2006. The
provision for loan losses is charged to earnings as losses are estimated to have occurred in order to bring the total
allowance for loan losses to a level deemed appropriate by management. Management’s periodic evaluation of the
adequacy of the allowance is based upon historical experience, the volume and type of lending conducted by us, adverse
situations that may affect the borrower’s ability to repay, estimated value of the underlying collateral, loans identified as
impaired, general economic conditions, particularly as they relate to our market areas, and other factors related to the
estimated collectibility of our loan portfolio. The allowance for loan losses totaled $692,000 or .40% of loans outstanding
at December 31, 2007, compared to $974,000, or .54% of loans outstanding at December 31, 2006. Management believes
the balance in the allowance for loan losses at December 31, 2007 is adequate.

Noninterest Income. Total noninterest income decreased $95,000, to $533,000 in 2007, from $628,000 in 2006,
primarily due to a reduction of $202,000 due to no gains recognized on the payoff of Federal Home Loan Bank advances
in 2007, partially offset by a $62,000 increase in litigation settlements and a $44,000 increase in loan prepayment fees.

Noninterest Expenses. Noninterest expenses totaled $3.7 million in 2007, a $175,000 increase from 2006, due primarily
to a $59,000 increase in salaries and employee benefits, a $49,000 increase in the FDIC insurance premium, and a $26,000
increase in professional fees, all due to general increases in the cost of services.

Income Taxes. Income taxes for 2007 were $1,003,000 (an effective rate of 36.5%) compared to income taxes of

$1,083,000 (an effective rate of 37.1%) for 2006.

Year Ended December 31, 2006 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2005

General. Net eamings for 2006 were $1,834,000, or $.62 per basic and $.60 per diluted share, compared to net eamings
of $1,601,000 or $.55 per basic and $.53 per diluted share for 2005. This increase in the Company's net earnings was
primarily due to an increase in net interest income which was partially offset by an increase in noninterest expenses, all of
which were due to the overall growth of the Company.

Interest Income. Interest income increased to $14.2 million for 2006 from $11.3 million in 2005. Interest income on
loans increased to $12.7 million due primarily to an increase in the average loan portfolio balance in 2006, and an increase
in the average yield eamned from 6.80% in 2005 to 7.23% in 2006. Intcrest on securities increased to $1.3 million due to
an increase in the average yield during the year ended December 31, 2006.

Interest Expense. Interest expense on deposit accounts increased to $5.1 million in 2006, from $3.7 million in 2005.
Interest expense increased primarily because of an increase in the average balance of deposits and the average rate paid
during 2006. Interest expense on borrowings increased to $2.9 million in 2006 from $2.1 million in 2005 primarily due to
an increase in the average balance of borrowings.
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Provision for Loan Losses. The provision for loan losses is charged to earnings to bring the total allowance to a level
deemed appropriate by management and is based upon historical experience, the volume and type of lending conducted by
us, industry standards, the amount of nonperforming loans, general economic conditions, particularly as they relate to our
market areas, and other factors related 1o the estimated collectibility of our loan portfolio. The provision in 2006 was
$265,000 compared to $149,000 for the same period in 2005. Management believes the balance in the allowance for loan
losses of $974,000 at December 31, 2006, is adequate.

Noninterest Income. Total noninterest income decreased to $628,000 in 2006, from $635,000 in 2005 primarily as a
result of a decrease in prepayment fees collected of $272,000 partially offset by an increase in gains recognized on the
payoff of Federal Home Loan Bank advances of $202,000 and a litigation settlement of $93,000 in 2006,

Noninterest Expenses. Total noninterest expenses increased to $3.6 million in 2006 from $3.4 million in 2005, primarily
due to an increase in salaries and employee benefits of $318,000 and an increase in professicnal fees of $85,000 all due to
the continued growth of the Company. The increase was partially offset by a decrease in the provision for losses on
foreclosed assets of $243,000,

Income Taxes. Income taxes in 2006, were $1,083,000 (an effective rate of 37.1%) compared to income taxes of
$982,000 (an effective rate of 38.0%} in 2005.

Impact of [nflation and Changing Prices

The financial statements and related data presented herein have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America, which requires the measurement of financial position and
operating results in terms of historical dollars, without considering changes in the relative purchasing power of money
over time due to inflation. Unlike most industrial companies, substantially all of our assets and liabilities are monetary in
nature, As a result, interest rates have a more significant impact on our performance than the effects of general levels of
inflation. Interest rates do not necessarily move in the same direction or in the same magnitude as the prices of goods and
services, since such prices are affected by inflation to a larger extent than interest rates.

Selected Quarterly Resuits

Selected quarterly results of operations for the four quarters ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 are as follows
{(in thousands, except share amounts):

2007 2006
Fourth  Third Second  First Fourth Third Second First
Quarter Quarter Ouarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Interest iNCOME .......ceccereruenns $4,175 $4,130 34,005 §$3,827 $3,828 53,621 $3,400 $3342
[nterest eXpense .....ooveirinnenas 2,531 2.499 2430 2,240 2.258 2.104 1.881 1,820
Net interest income............... 1,644 1,631 1,575 1,587 1,570 1,517 1,519 1,522
Provision (credit) for
loan loS5€5.....ccecceerresvenes (60) 16 209 311 120 12 27 106
Net interest income after
provision for loan losses ... 1,704 1,615 1,366 1,276 1,450 1,505 1,492 1,416
Noninterest income............... 93 47 159 234 63 108 181 276
Noninterest expense ............. 993 959 905 892 908 890 891 885
Earnings before
INCOME tAXES .vvveerercererene 804 703 620 618 605 723 782 807
Net earnings.............ccomvveienns 501 438 387 416 376 451 488 519
Basic carnings per
common SHare........c.cceeere A7 15 13 15 13 15 16 18
Diluted earnings per
common share..........ccceo. A7 .14 13 .14 12 .14 .16 .18
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QUARTERLY STOCK PRICE INFORMATION

Our common stock currently trades on the NASDAQ Global Market, under the symbol "OPHC." The table below presents
the high and low sales prices for the periods indicated.

Year uarter High Low
2006 First $11.05 $ 974
Second $14.23 $10.71
Third $13.05 $10.40
Fourth $11.00 $10.35
2007 First $13.00 $ 8.12
Second $10.50 $ 8.50
Third $10.16 $ 6.39
Fourth $ 9.00 $ 6.5

We had approximately 594 holders registered or in street name as of December 31, 2007.

We have not paid any cash dividends in the past. We intend that, for the foreseeable future, we will retain
earnings to finance continued growth rather than pay cash dividends on our common stock.

As a state chartered bank, the Bank is subject to dividend restrictions set by Florida law and the FDIC. Except
with the prior approval of the Florida Department, all dividends of any Florida bank must be paid out of retained net
profits from the current period and the previous two years, after deducting expenses, including losses and bad debts. In
addition, a state-chartered bank in Florida is required to transfer at least 20% of its net income to surplus until its surplus
equals the amount of paid-in capital. Under the Federal Deposit Insurance Act, an FDIC-insured institution may not pay
any dividend if payment would cause it to become undercapitalized or while it is undercapitalized.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

OptimumBank Holdings, Inc.
Fort Lauderdale, Florida:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of OptimumBank Holdings, [nc.
and Subsidiary (the "Company") as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the related consolidated
statements of earnings, stockholders' equity, and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that
our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of the Company at December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the results
of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles.

HACKER, JOHNSON & SMITH PA
Fort Lauderdale, Florida
March 21, 2008
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OPTIMUMBANK HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Consolidated Balance Sheets
(Dollars in thousands, except share amounts)

December 31,

2007
Cash and due from banks.......c.ccccvrveiriiienecnnecieecreee e $ 475
Federal funds sold............ccoooaeeiee e 226
Total cash and cash equivalents...............ccoeveeeeeeiiennee. 701
Securities held to maturity (fair value of $58,117 and
........................................................................................ 58,471
Security available for sale........ccoovvviniicciin 244
Loans, net of allowance for loan losses of $692 and $974 ................ 173,323
Federal Home Loan Bank stocK............cooceeiviiiieciiienies e ecices s 2,965
Premises and eqUIPMENt, NEL........coceeurrreerrervecrerrieereneeaernrsaeaseens 3,249
Foreclosed assels........ccovirreiviinreieniner s een e rae s eveeae 79
Accrued interest receivable. ... e 1,448
OthET ASSELS ...veeiieererrrerreeereeeea e rrasree e e e rrsrae e beeese s ernresrneseanensnsrans 1,067
TOLAl ASSELS.....cveeeeirrerreeresierec e reresreessesesesaraeessesrerenanens $ 241,547
Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity
Liabilities:
Noninterest-bearing demand deposits .........ccovevevevivcenivieciensens $ 1,304
Savings, NOW and money-market deposits...........oceerviennerrennes 28,202
TIMeE dePOSItS ...cvveeeieiiecie e e e e 95,528
Total depoSitS.....cvveeeeririieiecere et e 125,034
Federal Home Loan Bank advances.......cccoveecriienceesveicneceens 56,850
Other BOTTOWINGS ....c..civeeeeiriercireesseseee e reseess e sae s seensessese s 28,900
Junior subordinated debenture...........ccccoovvvviiiiieii e 5,155
Official CheCKS......ocveceeicteerirce s 2,251
Other HADIIEIES ..ceveeeeee et ee e ee e e en e essee s o aaesatreesnnresns 1,076
Deferred income tax lability ... 34
Total Habilities .....ccoeciiiiccermniniiecr e 219,300
Commitments and contingencies (Notes 4, 8 and 15)
Stockholders' equity:
Common stock, $.01 par value; 6,000,000 shares authorized,

2,972,507 and 2,820,280 shares issued and outstanding ....... 30
Additional paid-in capital..............coviiiiici e 17,308
Retained Earmings ..........oceveeriecreiiierecenreit e raeee st s ereve v s 4913
Accumulated other comprehensive 1088 .......c.ccoivvvvnieciecnie (4)

Total stockholders' equity ........ccccervrvirinvcerinveciccceeine 22,247
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity .........coceevennnnnene $ 241,547

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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$ 923
681

1,604

33,399
24]
181,878
2,956
3,990

1,254
381

$ 225,703

$ 545
25,875
103,082

129,502

36,550
10,950
5,155
2,463
611
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OPTIMUMBANK HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Consolidated Statements of Earnings
{In thousands, except share amounts)

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006
Interest income:
LOGIS ...oeorriemmrencieisssaesse e ses s s s $ 13,086 $ 12,662
SECUITEIES .vvuververeiraereesearresessassessesessneracestssesesnesreesbasssassarassensasnenn 2,803 1,323
(01117 SRR OO OSSR 248 206
Total INtEFest INCOITIE ....ocverveeerrerec s eareseeaaesens 16.137 14,191
Interest expense:
DIEPOSIES ..vvvevneeeerermceac st eas e ieas e ber s st s 5,836 5,148
BOITOWITIES -..cvceeneinriesrinn i iatess s 3.864 2915
Total INtErest EXPENSE ...o.eeeververrririiirirrisreeeeeeseaesiesasanes 9,700 8.063
Net INLETESE INCOMIE ....vvvrevveveieeearierressresneesaseeaseeseeransossssassernsesrassnnss 6,437 6,128
Provision for 10an 10SSeS.........cocvmriininiiniinincninievnsenseanes 476 265
Net interest income after provision for loan losses..........cocoocecine 5.961 5.863
Noninterest income:
Service charges and fees..........coviminrin e 79 69
Loan prepayment fEes.......cooveriiiirniiiniiesnesc e 294 250
Gain on early extinguishment of debt ... - 202
Litigation settlement.........c..cooeiviiinnnicte s 155 93
ORBET ..ottt bbb e e 5 14
Total nONINtErest INCOME ......evvereereriiiinsiireeiees e 533 628
Noninterest expenses:
Salaries and employee benefits ..........cooovevvvniriieniinnicinns 2,061 2,002
Occupancy and eqUIPMENT .......o.oveivermeteieenseinsestsescrnrene e 662 646
Data PrOCESSING -.vvrvvreeeiirieienesetsasr et 171 172
Professional fEeS........c..eeevvmreeneciiniiiiiin e 280 254
Insurance ................. S UUUUIV OO YO VPN SR PO 39 67
Stationary and SUPPLIEs. ... 39 36
L0111 1=; RO OO YUU OO PO 477 397
Total NONINTErEsSt EXPENSES...ccvviverrvvierriniriiesiinieniineaeens 3.749 3,574
Earnings before income taXes .........co.ccovvreencnnneesnnc s 2,745 2917
TNCOME LAKXES ...oeerueeereeiieereirersnesssessiresst et ssbsesssran s sn s e sbnansesnneas 1,003 1,083
INEL BAITHNES ..cvvvvreerrresenrermrcteietesisees st easssss e sssn s e ssa s s nen e ensssns $ 1,742 $ 1,834
Net earnings per share:
BASIC c.veveiieesieeebeeserereesaessee s sete st e st e s ere s raa b e be R $__ .59 $__.62
DAIEEED ..ot et e e erebessssssssessseeseaesssesree e beasinsaersannsnsbeas §__57 $__.60

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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OPTIMUMBANK HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity

Years Ended December 31, 2007 and 2006

(Dollars in thousands)

Common Stock

Shares

Balance at December 31, 2005............... 2,663,775

Proceeds from sale of common stock..... 1,277

Proceeds from exercise of common
stock options including tax benefit
21,150

134,078

Comprehensive income;
Net armings ....ccocvveeniincerenivrirearinnens -

Net change in unrealized loss on
security available for
sale, net of taX ....ocoeveveveierenienns -

Comprehensive income.........ccevenen.

Balance at December 31, 2006............... 2,820,280

Proceeds from sale of common stock..... 4,172

Proceeds from exercise of common

SEOCK OPLIONS....cceveeerriereerrenrenreneenee 7,166

5% stock dividend (fractional shares

paid in cash)......coeniivineinieneninnen 140,889

Comprehensive income:
Net eamings.........ccccccocvvieroccicnce. -

Net change in unrealized loss on
security available for
sale, net of taX «oovvvvvvv v -

Comprehensive income....................

Balance at December 31, 2007...............

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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OPTIMUMBANK HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(In thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities:
NE CAIMINES ...ovveoviraieereiriieterrereete e sterresaesneesesresreenesaesnesesasssesseasserens
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cash provided by
operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization............cc.ccevreervereersierreeseeeseeseesnanns
Provision for 1oan 10SSes .........ccoecvieeiinerccnieccee e
Gain on early extinguishment of debt...........ccocoviniiviiiniciins
Deferred income tax benefit...........ccooiviiine
Net amortization of fees, premiums and discounts.......................
Increase in accrued interest receivable ..........ocooveviiiiiiiininccinen
(Increase) decrease in Other assets .......ooovevvveevvcvvercenc e,
Increase in official checks and other liabilities............cccooeienne.

Net cash provided by operating activities..........c.ceeeveeeene.

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of securities held to maturity ........cccoocveeiiennieecncincnnne
Principal repayments and calls of securities held to maturity .............
Net decrease (INCrease) in l0ans ........cccoveeeieerccrensinscenensecneneecnenrenens
Sale (purchase) of premises and equipment, net............cccoeeeerrennene.
Purchase of Federal Home Loan Bank stock ........c..ccoevevincnncinennene

Net cash used in investing activVities ........ccooeeveeererercennnne

Cash flows from financing activities:
Net (decrease) increase N AEPOSILS ..ovvvviveverecreesrrersirrerrrreeresereeeeenns
Net increase (decrease) in other BOITOWINES .......oovvveeevcvevnicccneeerinne
Proceeds from sale of common stock.........ccocvcvieiininicinencceiesieene
Proceeds from Federal Home Loan Bank advances...........................
Repayment of Federal Home Loan Bank advances ...
Proceeds from exercise of common stock options .........c.ccceeneccenne.
Tax benefit associated with exercise of common stock options .........
Fractional shares of stock dividend patd in cash.......ccccccooevvvcviinnn

Net cash provided by financing activities...........ccc.oevneanen
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents................ccoceenn
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year ............ccoecvvinencs

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year...........c.ocovoieinnicinnnns

26

Year Ended December 31,

2007

$ 1,742

9,193

17,950

2006

$ 1,834

237
265
(202)
(138)
635
(224)
606
746

3,759

(12,038)
3.967
(12,262)
(153)
(244)

(20,730)

15,438
(2,000)
14
18,802
(15,000)
130
37

$_1,604

({continued)




OPTIMUMBANK HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, Continued
(In thousands)

Year Ended December 31

2007
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the year for:
IOEETESE ....eoeeec et e e e e e s $ 9,697
INCOME LAXES ...oviinercrcee e et $1,014
Noncash transactions:
Change in accumulated other comprehensive income, net
change in unrealized loss on security available for sale,
NEL OF LAX v.vevreeiiicre ettt ettt ees et eb et n e eneens $§_5
Common stock dividend ..........cccoovireiiiioiieneeeree e $ 1302
Loan reclassified to foreclosed assets..........ocoovevieereiirncnnenns $_179

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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OPTIMUMBANK HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2007 and 2006 and the Years Then Ended

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Organization. OptimumBank Holdings, Inc. (the "Holding Company") is a one-bank holding
company and owns 100% of OptimumBank (the "Bank"), a state (Florida)-chartered commercial
bank (collectively, the "Company"). The Holding Company's only business is the operation of the
Bank. The Bank's deposits are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. The Bank
offers a variety of community banking services to individual and corporate customers through its
three banking offices located in Broward County, Florida.

Basis of Presentation. The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of
the Holding Company and the Bank. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have
been eliminated in consolidation. The accounting and reporting practices of the Company
conform to U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and to general practices within the
banking industry. The following summarizes the more significant of these policies and practices:

Use of Estimates. In preparing consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities as of the date of the consolidated balance sheet
and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates. A material estimate that is particularly susceptible to significant
change in the near term relates to the determination of the allowance for loan losses.

Cash and Cash Equivalents. For purposes of the consolidated statements of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents include cash and balances due from banks and federal funds sold, all of which
mature within ninety days.

The Company is required by law or regulation to maintain cash reserves in the form of vault cash
or in accounts with other banks. There were no reserve balances required at December 31, 2007
and 2006.

Securities. Securities may be classified as either trading, held to maturity or available for sale.
Trading securities are held principally for resale and recorded at their fair values. Unrealized gains
and losses on trading securities are included immediately in earnings. Held to maturity securities
are those which management has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity and are
reported at amortized cost. Available for sale securities consist of securities not classified as
trading securities nor as held to maturity securities. Unrealized holding gains and losses, net of
tax on available for sale securities are reported as a net amount in accumulated other
comprehensive loss in stockholders' equity until realized. Gains and losses on the sale of
available for sale securities are determined using the specific-identification method. Premiums
and discounts on securities available for sale and held to maturity are recognized in interest
income using the interest method over the period to maturity.

(continued)
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OPTIMUMBANK HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Continued

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued
Loans. Loans that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or until
maturity or pay-off are reported at their outstanding principal adjusted for any charge-offs, the

allowance for loan losses, and any deferred fees or costs.

Commitment fees, and loan origination fees are deferred and certain direct origination costs are
capitalized. Both are recognized as an adjustment of the yield of the related loan.

The accrual of interest on loans is discontinued at the time the loan is ninety days delinquent
unless the loan is well collateralized and in process of collection. In all cases, loans are placed on
nonaccrual or charged-off at an earlier date if collection of principal or interest is considered
doubtful.

All interest accrued but not collected for loans that are placed on nonaccrual or charged-off is
reversed against interest income. The interest on these loans is accounted for on the cash-basis or
cost-recovery method, until qualifying for return to accrual. Loans are returned to accrual status
when all the principal and interest amounts contractually due are brought current and future
payments are reasonably assured.

Allowance for Loan Losses. The allowance for loan losses is established as losses are estimated to
have occurred through a provision for loan losses charged to eamings. Loan losses are charged
against the allowance when management believes the uncollectibility of a loan balance is
confirmed. Subsequent recoveries, if any, are credited to the allowance.

The allowance for loan losses is evaluated on a regular basis by management and is based upon
management's periodic review of the collectibility of the loans in light of historical experience, the
nature and volume of the loan portfolio, adverse situations that may affect the borrower's ability to
repay, estimated value of any underlying collateral and prevailing economic conditions. This
evaluation is inherently subjective as it requires estimates that are susceptible to significant
revision as more information becomes available.

The allowance consists of specific and general components. The specific component relates to
loans that are classified as impaired. For such loans, an allowance is established when the
discounted cash flows (or collateral value or observable market price) of the impaired loans are
lower than the carrying value of those loans. The general component covers all other loans and is
based on historical loss experience adjusted for qualitative factors.

(continued)
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OPTIMUMBANK HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Continued

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued
Allowance for Loan Losses, Continued. A loan is considered impaired when, based on current
information and events, it is probable that the Company will be unable to collect the scheduled
payments of principal or interest when due. Factors considered by management in determining
impairment include payment status, collateral value, and the probability of collecting scheduled
principal and interest payments when due. Loans that experience insignificant payment delays and
payment shortfalls generally are not classified as impaired. Management determines the
significance of payment delays and payment shortfalls on a case-by-case basis, taking into
constderation all of the circumstances surrounding the loan and the borrower, including the length
of the delay, the reasons for the delay, the borrower's prior payment record, and the amount of the
shortfall in relation to the principal and interest owed. Impairment is measured on a loan by loan
basis for commercial real estate, land and construction and multi-family real estate loans by either
the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan's effective interest rate, the
loan's obtainable market price, or the fair value of the collateral if the loan is collateral-dependent.

Large groups of smaller balance homogeneous loans are collectively evaluated for impairment.
Accordingly, the Company does not separately identify individual consumer and residential loans
for impairment disclosures.

Foreclosed Assets. Assets repossessed or acquired by foreclosure or deed in lieu of foreclosure are
carried at the lower of estimated fair value or the balance of the loan on the assets at date of
acquisition. Costs relating to the development and improvement of assets are capitalized, whereas
those relating to holding the assets are charged to expense. Valuations are periodically performed
by management and losses are charged to earnings if the carrying value of the assets exceeds its
estimated fair value.

Premises and Equipment. Land is stated at cost. Buildings and improvements, furniture, fixtures,
equipment, and leasehold improvements are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and
amortization. Depreciation and amortization expense are computed using the straight-line method
over the estimated useful life of each type of asset or lease term, if shorter.

(continued)
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OPTIMUMBANK HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Continued

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

Preferred Securities of Unconsolidated Subsidiary Trust. On September 30, 2004, the Company
acquired the common stock of OptimumBank Holdings Capital Trust 1 ("Issuer Trust"), an
unconsolidated subsidiary trust. The Issuer Trust used the proceeds from the issuance of
$5,000,000 of its preferred securities to third-party investors and common stock to acquire a
$5,155,000 debenture issued by the Company. This debenture and certain capitalized costs
associated with the issuance of the preferred stock comprise the Issuer Trust's only assets and the
interest payments from the debentures finance the distributions paid on the preferred securities.
The Company recorded the debenture in "Junior Subordinated Debenture” and its equity interest
in the business trust in "Other Assets" on the consolidated balance sheets.

The Company has entered into agreements which, taken collectively, fully and unconditionally
guarantee the preferred securities of the Issuer Trust subject to the terms of the guarantee.

The debenture held by the Issuer Trust currently qualifies as Tier I capital for the Company under
Federal Reserve Board guidelines.

Transfer of Financial Assets. Transfers of financial assets are accounted for as sales, when control
over the assets has been surrendered. Control over transferred assets is deemed to be surrendered
when (1) the assets have been isolated from the Company, (2) the transferee obtains the right (free
of conditions that constrain it from taking advantage of that right) to pledge or exchange the
transferred assets, and (3) the Company does not maintain effective control over the transferred
assets through an agreement to repurchase them before their maturity.

Income Taxes. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recorded to reflect the tax consequences
on future years of temporary differences between revenues and expenses reported for financial
statement and those reported for income tax purposes. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured using the enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which
those temporary differences are expected to be realized or settled. Valuation allowances are
provided against assets which are not likely to be realized.

The Holding Company and the Bank file a consolidated income tax return. Income taxes are
allocated proportionately to the Holding Company and subsidiary as though separate income tax
returns were filed.

Adbvertising. The Company expenses all media advertising as incurred. Media advertising expense
included in other in the accompanying consolidated statements of earnings was approximately

$40,000 and $32,000 during the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

{continued)
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OPTIMUMBANK HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Continued

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

Stock Compensation Plans. Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adopted the fair value
recognition provisions of FASB Statement No. 123(R), Share-Based Payment ("SFAS 123(R)"),
using the modified-prospective-transition method. Under that transition method, compensation
cost recognized includes: (a) compensation cost for all share-based payments granted prior to, but
not yet vested as of January 1, 2006, based on the grant date fair value calculated in accordance
with the original provisions of SFAS 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation (as
amended by SFAS No. 148, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation Transition and
Disclosure) {collectively SFAS 123) and (b) compensation cost for all share-based payments
granted subsequent to December 31, 2005, based on the grant-date fair value estimated in
accordance with the provisions of SFAS 123(R). AtDecember 31, 2005, all outstanding options
had vested.

Earnings Per Share. Basic earnings per share is computed on the basis of the weighted-average
number of common shares outstanding. Diluted earnings per share is computed based on the
weighted-average number of shares outstanding plus the effect of outstanding stock options,
computed using the treasury stock method. All amounts reflect the 5% stock dividends declared
in May 2007 and April 2006. Earnings per common share have been computed based on the

following:

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006
Weighted-average number of common shares outstanding
used to calculate basic earnings per common share......... 2,964,026 2,953,673
Effect of dilutive stock Options.........c.coceecinienecreniecieninninenee e 69.064 125.962
Weighted-average number of common shares outstanding
used to calculate diluted earmnings per common share ...... 3,033,090 3,079,635

The following options were excluded from the calculation of EPS due to the exercise price being
above the average market price:

Number Exercise
Qutstanding Price Expire
For the year ended December 31, 2007:
Options 254,678 $10.00-12.49 2014-2015

Off-Balance-Sheet Financial Instruments. In the ordinary course of business the Company has
entered into off-balance-sheet financial instruments consisting of commitments to extend credit.
Such financial instruments are recorded in the consolidated financial statements when they are
funded.

(continued)
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OPTIMUMBANK HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Continued

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

Fair Values of Financial Instruments. The fair value of a financial instrument is the current amount
that would be exchanged between willing parties, other than in a forced liquidation. Fair value is
best determined based upon quoted market prices. However, in many tnstances, there are no
quoted market prices for the Company's various financial instruments. In cases where quoted
market prices are not available, fair values are based on estimates using present value or other
valuation techniques. Those techniques are significantly affected by the assumptions used,
including the discount rate and estimates of future cash flows. Accordingly, the fair value
estimates may not be realized in an immediate settlement of the instrument or may not necessarily
represent the underlying fair value of the Company. The following methods and assumptions
were used by the Company in estimating fair values of financial instruments disclosed herein:

Cash and Cash Equivalents. The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents approximate
their fair value.

Securities. Fair values for securities are based on quoted market prices, where available. If
quoted market prices are not available, fair values are based on quoted market prices of
comparable instruments.

Federal Home Loan Bank Stock. Fair value of the Company's investment in Federal Home Loan
Bank stock is based on its redemption value, which is its cost of $100 per share.

Loans. For variable-rate loans that reprice frequently and have no significant change in credit
risk, fair values are based on carrying values. Fair values for certain fixed-rate mortgage (e.g.
one-to-four family residential), commercial real estate and commercial loans are estimated using
discounted cash flow analyses, using interest rates currently being offered for loans with similar
terms to borrowers of similar credit quality. Fair values for nonperforming loans are estimated
using discounted cash flow analyses or underlying collateral values, where applicable.

Deposit Liabilities. The fair values disclosed for demand, NOW, money-market and savings
deposits are, by definition, equal to the amount payable on demand at the reporting date (that is,
their carrying amounts). Fair values for fixed-rate time deposits are estimated using a discounted
cash flow calculation that applies interest rates currently being offered on time deposits to a
schedule of aggregated expected monthly maturities of time deposits.

Accrued Interest. The carrying amounts of accrued interest approximate their fair values.

Federal Home Loan Bank Advances, Junior Subordinated Debenture and Other Borrowings.
Fair values of Federal Home Loan Bank advances, junior subordinated debenture and other
borrowings which consist of securities sold under an agreement to repurchase are estimated using
discounted cash flow analysis based on the Company's current incremental borrowings rates for

similar types of borrowings.

{continued)
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OPTIMUMBANK HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Continued

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued
Fair Values of Financial Instruments, Continued.
Off-Balance-Sheet Financial Instruments. Fair values for off-balance-sheet lending
commitments are based on fees currently charged to enter into similar agreements, taking into
account the remaining terms of the agreements and the counterparties' credit standing.

Comprehensive Income. Accounting principles generally require that recognized revenue, expenses,
gains and losses be included in net earnings. Although certain changes in assets and liabilities,
such as unrealized gains and losses on available for sale securities, are reported as a separate
component of the equity section of the consolidated balance sheets, such items along with net
earnings, are components of comprehensive income. The only component of other
comprehensive income is the net change in unrealized loss on securities available for sale for the
years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006.

Recent Pronouncements. In September 2006, Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB")
issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements ("SFAS 157"). SFAS 157 defines fair value,
establishes a framework for measuring fair value in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. This statement is
effective for the Company as of January 1, 2008. Management is in the process of evaluating the
impact of SFAS 157 and does not anticipate it will have any effect on the Company's consolidated
financial condition or results of operations.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities ("SFAS 159"). SFAS 159 provides the Company with an option to
report selected financial assets and liabilities at fair value. This statement is effective for the
Company as of January 1, 2008. Management is in the process of evaluating the impact of SFAS
159 and does not anticipate it will have any effect on the Company's consolidated financial
condition or results of operations.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141(R), Business Combinations ("SFAS 141(R)").

SFAS 141(R) is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008 and early
implementation is not permitted. SFAS 141(R) requires the acquiring entity in a business
combination to recognize all (and only) the assets acquired and liabilities assumed in the
transaction; establishes the acquisition date fair value as the measurement objective for all assets
acquired and liabilities assumed; and requires the acquirer to disclose to investors and other users
all of the information they need to evaluate and understand the nature and financial effect of the
business combination. Acquisition related costs including finder's fees, advisory, legal,
accounting valuation and other professional and consulting fees are required to be expensed as
incurred. Management is in the process of evaluating the impact of SFAS 141(R) and does not
anticipate it will have any current effect on the Company's consolidated financial condition or
results of operations.

(continued)
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OPTIMUMBANK HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Continued
(2) Securities

Securities have been classified according to management's intent. The carrying amount of securities
and approximate fair values are as follows (in thousands):

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
At December 31, 2007:;
Securities Held to Maturity:
Mortgage-backed securities.......... $ 58,371 $229 $(583) $ 58,017
State of Israel bond ...................... 100 - - 100
$ 58471 $ 229 $(583) $ 58,117
Security Available for Sale-
Mutual fund ..., $_ 250 $ - $_(6) $__244
At December 31, 2006:
Securities Held to Maturity:
Mortgage-backed securities.......... $ 33,299 $272 $(521) $ 33,050
State of Israel bond ...................... 100 - - 100
$33.399 3272 $(2D) $ 33,150
Security Available for Sale-
Mutual fund ......ooeeeeveeeeeeereeeeeen, $ ZiQ $ —_ $ ‘2) $ _Zil

There were no securities sold during the years ended December 31, 2007 or 2006.

Securities with gross unrealized losses at December 31, 2007, aggregated by investment category and
length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous loss position, is as follows (in

thousands):
Less Than Twelve Months Over Twelve Months
Gross Gross
Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair
Losses Value Losses Value
Securities held to maturity-
Mortgage-backed securities .... $(291)  $25.298 $(292) $15412
Security available for sale-
Mutual fund.......ccooeeeeeennnn. $_- $__ - $ (6) $__244
(continued)
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OPTIMUMBANK HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Continued

(2) Securities, Continued
Management evaluates securities for other-than-temporary impairment at least on a quarterly basis,
and more frequently when economic or market concerns warrant such evaluation. Consideration
is given to (1) the length of time and the extent to which the fair value has been less than cost, (2)
the financial condition and near-term prospects of the issuer, and (3) the intent and ability of the
Company to retain its investment in the issuer for a period of time sufficient to allow for any
antictpated recovery in fair value.

The unrealized losses on investment securities held to maturity were caused by market changes. 1tis
expected that the securities would not be settled at a price less than the par value of the
investments. Because the decline in fair value is attributable to market changes and not credit
quality, and because the Company has the ability and intent to hold these investments until a
market price recovery or maturity, these investments are not considered other-than-temporarily

impaired.
(3) Loans
The components of loans are as follows (in thousands):
At December 31,
2007 2006
Residential real State ........ovveeevereerrereerveeeeseee e eeeveeenas $ 65908 $ 70,868
Multi-family real estate..........c.ccooeeoveerireninceccnenens 10,275 10,769
Commercial real estate ........ccoeeveiriieeevie e 75,777 68,852
Land and CONStIUCHON.......cvceeieieeeveiierreeieererresrrreesssrneeeees 21,093 31,022
CONSUIMET ...ooiiiiiiiiiiiereiiiiseesserersceraeteesanreeseassnseeessvasaaen 15 227
Total IOANS ....oovvveeeeieeeirr et 173,068 181,738
Add (deduct):
Net deferred loan fees, costs and premiums .............. 970 1,163
Loan diSCOUNLS ........cceiieriecieieree e rr e ser e e eneaneens (23) (49)
Allowance for 10an 10SS€S .......oovvvvvivrcciiiienieenceeenenne (692) (974)
LOANS, NEL....ooviieiiieeieieeeeees e eereae e ee e sae e e esesseaenesen $173323 $181,878
(continued)
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(3) Loans, Continued
An analysis of the change in the allowance for loan losses follows (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006
Beginning balance ..........cocoeovvivierivcceneineeni e $974 $777
Charge-0fTs ....ooovieee e e (758) (68)
Provision for 10an loSSES.......cc.coiiiiiieiieiiiieieeecee e s 476 265
Ending Dalance........ocooereiivienieeeiieisic et eases e $692 $974

There were no impaired loans during 2006 or at December 31, 2007. During 2007, the average net
investment in impaired loans and interest income recognized and received on impaired loans is as
follows (in thousands):

Average investment in impaired 10ans ............cocveecrvcimeiencnencn. $ 1,581
Interest income recognized on impaired loans ... $__39
Interest income received on impaired loans ...........c.ccoocevvereeennnne $__39

At December 31, 2006, the Company had no nonaccrual loans or loans over 90 days past due still
accruing interest. Nonaccrual and past due loans were as follows as of December 31, 2007 (in
thousands):

NOBACCTURL LOANS ..o e $245
Past due ninety days or more, but still accruing interest............. $ -

(4) Premises and Equipment
A summary of premises and equipment follows (in thousands):

At December 31,

2007 2006

5 L« O SO SSRSRR $1,171 $1,371
Buildings and improvements ...........ccccocoevoververrrrreeeeseereneneseennes 1,940 2,336
Furniture, fixtures and equipment.............cccoveeevecvercceeenresensiennes 987 896
Leaschold ImpProvements .........c.ocvvvecevierierinnesreescesnsecssnieecneeene 114 111
Total, at COSL. ittt 4212 4,714
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization .................. _(963) (724)
Premises and equipment, NE...........ccovveveriveerececeeeseeerernsernesas $3249  $3,990

(continued)
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(4) Premises and Equipment, Continued
| On February 1, 2007, the Company entered into a sale/leaseback transaction for its Galt Ocean Mile
| branch facility. No gain or loss was recognized on this transaction.

The Company currently leases two branch facilities under operating leases. One lease contains
. renewal options and requires the Company to pay an allowable share of common area
maintenance and real estate taxes. The other lease only requires the Company to pay real estate
i taxes. Rent expense under operating leases during the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006
was $119,000 and $70,000 respectively. At December 31, 2007, the future minimum lease

payments are approximately as follows (in thousands):

Year Ending Amount
2008 oottt s ee e $130
2000 130
2010 o, 130
20011 et 130
20012 e 81
Thereafter.........cccoviveieecieceiieececec s _70
$ 671

(5) Deposits
The aggregate amount of time deposits with a minimum denomination of $100,000, was
approximately $38.9 million and $40.9 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

A schedule of maturities of time deposits at December 31, 2007 follows (in thousands):

Year Ending

December 31, Amount
2008.....oiie s $ 78,100
20009....... s 10,961
2000 e e 5,555
2001 801
20012, e 111

$95.528

(continued)
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(6) Federal Home Loan Bank Advances and Junior Subordinated Debenture

The maturities and interest rates on the Federal Home Loan Bank ("FHLB") advances were as follows
(dollars in thousands):

Maturi

Year Endti)lrlg Call Interest At December 31,

December 31, Date Rate 2007 2006
Daily..ocoeeeeeerrreerereene. - 4.40%® $ 700 $ 2,500
2007 - 3.48 - 2,500
2007 - 3.70 - 2,000
2009, - 4.92 1,000 1,000
2009.....iiecrree - 4.99 5,000 5,000
2009.....cciee - 4.95 5,000 -
2012, 2009 4.75 4,000 -
2013 e 2008 3.42 2,000 2,000
2013 e 2008 3.09 3,000 3,000
2013 e 2008 2.80 1,950 1,950
2013 e 2008 2.56 3,000 3,000
2013 e 2008 3.44 3,000 3,000
2014 .o, 2007 3.14 - 4,000
2004 2009 3.64 8,000 8,000
2016 2009 4.51 5,000 5,000
2006..ciircrecrenne 2009 4.65 8,000 8,000
2016....ciiiiiieee 2009 4.44 5,600 5,600
pJ1) & S 2009 438 1,600 -

$ 56,850 $ 26550
@ Adjusts daily

Certain of the above advances are callable by the FHLB at the dates indicated.

At December 31, 2007 and 2006, the FHLB advances were collateralized by a blanket lien on
qualifying residential one-to-four family mortgage loans, commercial and multi-family real estate
loans and all of the Company's Federal Home Loan Bank stock.

During 2006, the Company repaid $15,000,000 of FHLB advances early resulting in a gain of
$202,000.

On September 30, 2004, the Company issued a $5,155,000 junior subordinated debenture to an
unconsolidated subsidiary. The debenture has a term of thirty years. The interest rate is fixed at
6.4% for the first five years, and thereafter, the coupon rate will float quarterly at the three-month
LIBOR rate plus 2.45%. The junior subordinated debenture, due in 2034, is redeemable in certain
circumstances after October 2009.

(continued)
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(7) Other Borrowings
Other borrowings consist of securities sold under an agreement to repurchase. The securities sold
under the agreement to repurchase were delivered to the broker-dealer who arranged the
transactions. Information concerning the securities sold under an agreement to repurchase is
summarized as follows (dollars in thousands):

Year Ended December 31
2007 2006
Balance at year €nd .........cooceceieiniieieeineic et ene $28,900 $10,950
Average balance during the year...........ccocovvvnnnvninininnciines $26,971  $12,756
Average interest rate during the year.........ccccovevinciiccinicineies 4.72% 4.41%
Maximum month-end balance during the year ...............ccocoveneeeee. $31,900 $12950
Securities held to maturity pledged as collateral .......................... $33,675 $15352

The maturities and interest rates on securities sold under an agreement to repurchase are as follows
(dollars in thousands):

Maturing

Year Ended Interest At December 31,
December 31, Rate 2007 2006
2007 e 4.02% $ - $ 5,350
2007 oo 4.85% - 3,000
2007 oo 5.32% - 2,600
2012 e 4.60% 6,000 -
2002 oo 4.63% 4,500 -
2012 e 4.69% 8,000 -
2012 oo 4.71% 4,600 -
2002 oo 4.64% 5.800 -

$28.900  $10,950

At December 31, 2007, the Company also had $6 million available under a line of credit with its
correspondent bank. There were no amounts outstanding in connection with this agreement at
December 31, 2007.

(continued)

40




OPTIMUMBANK HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Continued

(8) Financial Instruments
The estimated fair values of the Company's financial instruments were as follows (in thousands):

At December 31, 2007 At December 31, 2006
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents .............ccccoeeveennee 3 701 % 701 § 1,604 $ 1,604
Securities held to maturity ........ccoovieeeeenen. 58,471 58,117 33,399 33,150
Security available for sale..........cccovveiennnee. 244 244 241 241
LOANS ..ot ee e e 173,323 172,860 181,878 181,688 '
Federal Home Loan Bank stock ..........c.covv.. 2,965 2,965 2,956 2,956
Accrued interest receivable.........ccoevvevnienenne 1,448 1,448 1,254 1,254
Financial liabilities:
Deposit liabilitics .......cccoovoceececrereeiceceieeene 125,034 125,134 129,502 129,059
Federal Home Loan Bank advances.............. 56,850 56,346 56,550 54,178
Other BOTTOWIRES .....ccoevrivicririicirenrinrareernens 28,900 29,317 10,950 10,887
Junior subordinated debenture....................... 5,155 5,083 5,155 5,086

Off-balance sheet financial instruments ........ - - - -

The Company is party to financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk in the normal course of
business to meet the financing needs of its customers. These financial instruments are
commitments to extend credit and may involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit and
interest-rate risk in excess of the amount recognized in the consolidated balance sheet. The
contract amounts of these instruments reflect the extent of involvement the Company has in these
financial instruments.

The Company's exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the other party to the
financial instrument for commitments to extend credit is represented by the contractual amount of
those instruments. The Company uses the same credit policies in making commitments as it does
for on-balance-sheet instruments.

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of
any condition established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or
other termination clauses and may require payment of a fee. Because some of the commitments
are expected to expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not
necessarily represent future cash requirements. The Company evaluates each customer's credit
worthiness on a case-by-case basis. The amount of collateral obtained, if deemed necessary by
the Company, upon extension of credit, is based on management's credit evaluation of the

counterparty.

(continued)
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(8) Financial Instruments, Continued
Commitments to extend credit typically result in loans with a market interest rate when funded. A
summary of the amounts of the Company's financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk at
December 31, 2007 follows (in thousands):

Contract

Amount
Undisbursed 10ans in process........ccocvcveeevieeinnienneiennnen $_250
Commitments to extend credit.........cocoveveervevevreceniininan, $ 6,665

(9) Credit Risk
The Company grants the majority of its loans to borrowers throughout Broward and portions of Palm
Beach and Miami-Dade Counties, Florida. Although the Company has a diversified loan portfolio,
a significant portion of its borrowers’ ability to honor their contracts is dependent upon the
economy in Broward, Palm Beach and Miami-Dade Counties, Florida.

(10) Income Taxes
Income taxes consisted of the following (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006
Current:
| 04[5 ¢ | R UUOUPIUO $ 866 $1,041
o 7211 <R U TS 150 180
ToOtal CUITENL.... v ieeieeeieeeeereenrrnerrrreeaeeeaes 1,016 1,221
Deferred:
Federal ..ot e (10) (118)
A o eereeeeeeevesirerereetesseisstrseereesanrreesssesntreeeesrnrransean (3) (20)
Total deferred....ooooevmeeeeeeeeeeeee e (13) (138)
TOLAL ..o e $ 1,003 $ 1083
(continued)
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(10) Income Taxes, Continued
The reasons for the differences between the statutory Federal income tax rate and the effective tax rate

are summarized as follows (dollars in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006
% of % of
Pretax Pretax
Amount Earnings Amount Earnings

Income taxes at statutory rate ..............cocvneee. $ 933 340% S 992 34.0%
Increase (decrease) resulting from:
State taxes, net of Federal tax benefit...... 97 35 106 3.6
Other ..o 27y ((.0) (15) {5

$1003 365% $1083  371%

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities are presented below (in thousands).

At December 31,
2007 2006
Deferred tax assets:
Allowance for 10an l0SSes ........cccvieveeciieeeeiieeee e $ 186 $ 282
Unrealized loss on security available for sale...........cccoe....... _2 -
Deferred tax assets.........cocoeovieiceiiieeieceiecieeiieeiascvens 188 282
Deferred tax habilities:
LOAN COSES ..cvvuiiiiiiniiiiieieiaret et st seneiesiaasssba b ansesssanens (39) (49)
Accrual to cash adjustment ...........ccociririincnienee e (62) (123)
Premises and equipment ............ccoccoiiiiiiiiniiniie e (104) (142)
OhEr ..o nean (7 (7
Deferred tax liabilities ............ccocvvevieriiercceeeceeeee. 222 (331
Net deferred income tax liability .............ccooveenencn., $_(34) $ (49)

(11) Related Party Transactions
The Company has entered into transactions with its executive officers, directors and their affiliates in
the ordinary course of business. There were loans to related parties at December 31, 2007 and
2006 of approximately $3,810,000 and $2,243,000, respectively. At December 31, 2007 and
2006, these same related parties had approximately $1,436,000 and $1,931,000, respectively, on
deposit with the Company.

{continued)
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(12) Stock-Based Compensation

The Company established an Incentive Stock Option Plan (the "Plan™) for officers, directors and
employees of the Company and reserved 544,840 (amended) shares of common stock for the plan.
Both incentive stock options and nonqualified stock options may be granted under the plan. The
exercise price of the stock options is determined by the board of directors at the time of grant, but
cannot be less than the fair market value of the common stock on the date of grant. The options
vest over three and five years. However, the Company's board of directors authorized the
immediate vesting of all stock options outstanding as of December 29, 2005 in order to reduce
noncash compensation expense that would have been recorded in its consolidated statements of
earnings in future years upon adoption of SFAS 123(R) in January 2006. The options must be
exercised within ten years from the date of grant. At December 31, 2007, 13,561 options were
available for grant.

A summary of the activity in the Company's stock option plan is as follows. All option amounts
reflect the 5% stock dividends declared in May 2007 and April 2006. The Board of Directors did
not adjust the exercise price of the stock options outstanding to reflect the 5% stock dividends
(dollars in thousands, except share amounts):

Weighted-
Weighted-  Average
Average Remaining Aggregate

Number of Exercise Contractual Intrinsic
Options Price Term Value
Outstanding at December 31, 2005 ......... 521,484 § 7.98
Exercised......c.cooeevieivcieeierrees e (21,150) 6.45
Forfeited.......cccooveveeiiieiiee e (9.702) 9.67
Outstanding at December 31, 2006 ......... 490,632 8.04
EXercised.......coovveinniiinie e (7,166) 5.67
Forfeited.......cocoovveieiiieiceriee e (3.859) 10.00
Outstanding and exercisable at
December 31, 2007 .......ccooveevirrnnnnen. 479.607 §$ 806 5.7 years $ 226

The total intringic value of options exercised during the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006
was $16,675 and $106,734, respectively, and the tax benefit relating to the stock options exercised
in 2006 was $37,000. There was no tax benefit recognized in 2007.

(continued)
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(12) Stock-Based Compensation, Continued

Effective January 1, 2002, the Board of Directors adopted a nonemployee director compensation and
stock purchase plan under which each outside director is required to purchase Company stock
with compensation for board meetings at a price no less than fair market value. A total of 15,941
shares (as adjusted to reflect the 5% stock dividends declared in May 2007 and April 2006) have
been authorized for issuance to outside directors under this plan. A total of 4,172 and 1,277
shares of common stock were issued to outside directors under this plan during the years ended
December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. A total of 5,300 shares were available for issuance at
December 31, 2007. This plan was terminated effective January 1, 2008.

(13) Regulatory Matters

The Bank is subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the regulatory banking
agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory and
possibly additional discretionary actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct
matenal effect on the Company's and Bank's financial statements. Under capital adequacy
guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the Bank must meet
specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of their assets, liabilities, and certain
off-balance-sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The capital amounts
and classification are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about components,
risk weightings, and other factors.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Bank to
maintain minimum amounts and percentages (set forth in the following table) of total and Tier |
capital (as defined in the regulations) to risk-weighted assets (as defined) and of Tier 1 capital (as
defined) to average assets (as defined). Management believes, as of December 31, 2007, the Bank
met all capital adequacy requirements to which they are subject.

As of December 31, 2007, the most recent notification from the regulatory authorities categorized the
Bank as well capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. To be
categorized as well capitalized, an institution must maintain minimum total risk-based, Tier I risk-
based, and Tier I leverage percentages as set forth in the following tables. There are no conditions
or events since that notification that management believes have changed the Bank's category. The
Bank's actual capital amounts and percentages are also presented in the table (dollars in

thousands).
Minimum
To Be Well
Capitalized Under
For Capital Adequacy Prompt Corrective
Actual Purposes Action Provisions
Amount Y Amount % Amount Y
As of December 31, 2007:
Total Capital to Risk-
Weighted Assets............. $ 27,966 17.95% $ 12,465 8.00% $ 15,581 10.00%
Tier I Capital to Risk-
Weighted Assets............. 27,274 17.50 6,232 4.00 9,349 6.00
Tier 1 Capital
to Total Assets................ 27,274 11.15 9,787 4.00 12,234 5.00
(continued)
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(13) Regulatory Matters, Continued

Minimum
To Be Well
Capitalized Under
For Capital Adequacy Prompt Corrective
Actual Purposes Action Provisions
Amount Amount % Amount _%
As of December 31, 2006:
Total Capital to Risk-
Weighted Assets.......... 26,334 16.72 12,599 8.00 15,749 10.00
Tier I Capital to Risk-
Weighted Assets............. 25,360 16.10 6,299 4.00 9,449 6.00
Tier I Capital
to Total Assets............... 25,360 11.24 9,026 4.00 11,282 5.00

(14) Dividends

The Company is limited in the amount of cash dividends that may be paid. Banking regulations place
certain restrictions on dividends and loans or advances made by the Bank to the Holding
Company. The amount of cash dividends that may be paid by the Bank to the Holding Company
is based on the Bank's net earnings of the current year combined with the Bank's retained earnings
of the preceding two years, as defined by state banking regulations. However, for any dividend
declaration, the Company must consider additional factors such as the amount of current penod
net earnings, liquidity, asset quality, capital adequacy and economic conditions. It 1s likely that
these factors would further limit the amount of dividend which the Company could declare. In
addition, bank regulators have the authority to prohibit banks from paying dividends if they deem
such payment to be an unsafe or unsound practice.

(15) Contingencies
Various claims also arise from time to time in the normal course of business. In the opinion of
management, none have occurred that will have a material effect on the Company's consolidated

financial statements.

(16) Simple IRA
The Company has a Simple IRA Plan whereby substantially all employees participate in the Plan.
Employees may contribute up to 15 percent of their compensation subject to certain limits based
on federal tax laws. The Company makes matching contributions equal to the first 3% of an
employee's compensation contributed to the Plan. Matching contributions vest to the employee
immediately. For the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, expense attributable to the Plan
amounted to $42,333 and $42,205, respectively.

(continued)
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(17) Holding Company Financial Information
The Holding Company’s unconsolidated financial information as of December 31, 2007 and 2006 and

for the years then ended follows (in thousands):

Condensed Balance Sheets

At December 31,
2007 2006
Assets
CaASN et e s enas $ 13 3 75
Investment in SubsSIdIAry ......cccocveiviicreciecrcrec e 27,270 25,351
OthEr ASSEIS....ueiiviriiceirrerrrireereererre e srreereesreresseererernassesreens 218 255
TOtAl @SSELS....veireieriiiiie it ebeersennes $27,501 $25.,681
Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity
Other Habilities ......oviviiiiiiie ittt $ 9 $ 103
Junior subordinated debenture...........cc.oooviiiiiiiice 5,155 5,155
Stockholders' @qUILY......ocvvervvirivcieie e ssee e 22,247 20423
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity ..........ccceevevernene. $27,501 $25,681

Condensed Statements of Earnings

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006

Earnings of subsidiary ..........ccovevveverneervesece v $2,011 $2,102
INTETESE EXPEIISE .vvevvereeerereeiirieeieriesersaasesseteebenaesbebasssssasbensans (320) (320)
Other EXPENSE ...uvvvvreicreerirrerieeiertrerirresrrassererer e nreesssneesreeans (111) (109)
Earnings before income tax benefit .........cccoeveiveeineennene. 1,580 1,673
Income tax benefit........ccocooceneciiniiinii (162) 161
NEt CAIMINGS ..cvveveeireri et e e srees e sbe e $ 1,742 $1,834

(continued)
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(17) Holding Company Financial Information, Continued

Condensed Statements of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006

Cash flows from operating activities:
NEL EAIMINES ...eveereiiaeereicii ettt ese et s st raeee et er s eeenene $1,742 $ 1,834
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cash
(used in) provided by operating activities:

Equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiary .............. (2,011) (2,102)
Decrease in other assets .........coovvvverirnrccnnnciecirecnenn 37 264
(Decrease) increase in accrued other liabilities.............. 4) 7
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities....... 236 3
Cash flow from investing activities:
Dividend from subsidiary .........cccocvcevricennnnecnenecienineenes 175 -
Investment in SUbSIAIATY ...c.ooveriirririnrere e (78} (144)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities ....... 97 144
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from sale of common stock .......c.oovvireincereencnen 37 14
Proceeds from exercise of common stock options............... 41 130
Tax benefit associated with exercise of stock options......... - 37
Fractional shares of stock dividend paid in cash ................ 1) -
Net cash provided by financing activities...................... 77 181
Net (decrease) increase in cash .........coooverveereerccinnne. (62) 40
Cash at beginning of the year............ccovvieeeicninccnineciiees 75 35
Cash at end 0f YEAT .....c.oveeeveriereiee et $_1 $__175

Noncash transactions:
Change in accumulated other comprehensive loss of
subsidiary, net change in unrealized loss on security
available for sale, net of tax .............ccccceiiiiiiie it S

_3
Common stock dividend ...........cceoviiecininenniciieennen $ 1302 $ 1,609
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